Agenda

Tolland Zoning Board of Appeals
21 Tolland Green, Tolland, CT
Thursday, July 27, 2023 at 7:00 p.m., 6% floor — Council Chambers

. Call to Order

. Seat Alternate(s)

Public Hearing(s)

3.1. ZBA #23-2 — 17 Walbridge Hill Road — Variance request from Section 17-2.C.1 to allow a 22’
x 24’ garage to be 10 feet from the side property line where 25 feet is required. Zone: RDD.
Map/Block/Lot: 29/L/018. Applicant: Louis and April Marchigiano.

Business Meeting

. Approve Minutes - February 23, 2023 Regular Meeting

. Other Business

. Adjournment

Any party needing an accommaodation contact the Planning & Development Department at (860) 871-3601.
The Town of Tolland is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer.



TOWN of TOLLAND/ 21 tolland green, tolland connecticut 06084

Zoning Board of Appeals

LEGAL NOTICE
TOLLAND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

The Zoning Board of Appeals will hold a public hearing on June 22, 2023 at 7:00 p.m to consider
the following application:

ZBA #23-2 — 17 Walbridge Hill Road — Variance request from Section 17-2.C.1 to allow a 22’ x
24’ garage to be 16 feet from the side property line where 25 feet is required. Zone: RDD.
Map/Block/Lot: 29/L/018. Applicant: Louis and April Marchigiano.

A copy of this application is available on file and available for review in the Planning and
Building Department at 21 Tolland Green. At this hearing, public comments will be heard and
written communications received.

To be advertised twice in the Journal Inquirer:

Once on: Thursday, June 8, 2023
Once on: Monday, June 19, 2023



TOWN OF TOLLAND

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE App. #
Zoning Board of Appeals

Property Information

Property Address: | ] WAL &R INGE Lk JB

Property Owner: LOu[S + ”’PQL MHQCH[GJH'ND! '
zone: _ P PP Map/Block/Lot: _ /) 9 / L/ 7 [8

Applicant Information

Name: (if different than above)

Address: (i different than above)

Phone Number: 9@0-870-/60? Email Address: @@M

Variance Requested
Describe variance being requested and hardship (self-created, financial or cosmetic issues are not hardships):

e Secure ouy vehio Lo_s ﬁrbm an l'ﬂ(lfea.sa_, {r\ ‘HHe.JC—Es :’:‘—cd—emtcje
d catalihs ' :

] ;
-[-(.f (VN1 1 (6]
: & o on .5_.1::12.1 QS ouwv
A Ythe houss . Other side [ close 4o wetland dwa.
Section of Zoning Regulations to be Varied: M&@%&Qﬁ———

All of the above statements and the statements contained in any documents and plans submitted herewith are
true to the best of my knowledge:

Applicant Signature: Date:

Owner Signature: % Date: =57 L 4 _/é 2

A separate letter or emajl aner authorizing permission to apply for a variance is also acceptable.
.

9 copies of a sketch / plot plan clearly showing the proposed location of the structure, property lines, and distance to
property lines must accompany this application along with the appropriate fee. Please consult with staff.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Fee Amount: \& 220.00 Official Date of Receipt:

Form of Payment: CVLQ,CL/ Public Hearing Set for:
Date Submitted:

it 0S|25 2013

Decision Date:
Decision:




N/F ROSENBAUM

BUILDING LINE

ALFRED E. SCHINDLER

LAND SURVEYOR

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT

N/F ROSENBAUM
t.P,

o

79.08 "'

FOUNDATION CHECKED

DATE

W e
\ B
e L
N) o
N (i3
g 0
N/F JOHN E, LUETJEN,
VKO/ INC,
N ‘ ‘
25" N — ’
A XX =y
\,.
wcf
-3
2
1 158,49’ 1.pP,
1.P, /t
WALBR | DGE HILL  ROAD
PLOT PLAN
LOT OF JOHN E. LUETJEN, INC.
LOCATED IN TOLLAND, CONN,
BCALE 1" = 50' CERT
IFIED ‘UI'TANT'IALI.Y CORRECT
5/ 6/ 68 A Le 881

DATE
6711=1a




‘a55ﬁ'n?1u 5270 O4PR 0733 75

$

Certified Mall Fee $4.15 0184
S0 12

Extra Services B Fees (check box, add fegaﬂapﬁﬁnale)

CIRetwn Receipt (hardeopy)

[ Roturn Recolpt (sfectranic) $ iﬁ ; ﬁi Posimark

] Cenlfled Mall Restiicied Delivery  § M Here

{71 Adult Signature Required —&i 00

{7 Adult Signature Restricted Delivery S
Poslage $|.| . 53

- o -y
Total Postage and{zes, Uﬁ/Uu/?ﬁQé
L

’155‘:1 D?lﬂ s2vd DL}Eé 0734 29

Sant To

No or PO Box No.

2 \IRGIwin AW T
&)

Cily, Stare ZiP+4®
Lo

o

N & Paul Nacousky

Corlied Wil Fos $4.15

fies

[Strect ancf

) £01, (i) 12

Exira Services & Fees (check box, add reegﬁpma!e)

[tReturn Recepl (hardeopy)

i fteturn Recelpt {glsclron'c) S E E * E-"J Posimark

[ECentified Malk Restricted Delivery  § _S_E_.j_ﬂ___ Hers

I Aduit Signature Required S & A0

{JAduit Slgnature Restricted Detvery $ .
P 40,63

. =

Total Postage andgies ue/08/2023
s .78
Sent To

Exlra Senvices & Fees fhock box, add riate]
L] Return Receipt rardeopy) s -{Bftm !

[T Return Racelpt (etoctionic) 0,00

[ Certified Azil Restricted Defvery s $0.00

] Adult Signaturs Hequired .00
["TAGult Signalure Restricted Dellvery $ __$ —
Posiage
$3.463
Total Postage and {zes
k]

$

“-E:'l .‘?’.4?“
12

Postmark
Here

(670872023




s
12

Here

Postmark

61184

Gertified Mai Fan | $5.15
L]

Ty

!
-

000

118

)

s
s
3

Extra Services & Fi hack box, add ft 50,00 te}
©eSs (chack box, add fee, ate)
[ Return Regelpt (hardcgpy) 3 m
] Rebun Reosipt (electionic) s_ SO0
[T Gedified Mal Resticted Defvary  § _ §{L, (I .
[t Adult Signature fHequired % _$‘BT‘BBM—
[CFAdult Signatuce Rosvicted Defivery $ ____—

Jave C7— dec8F

Dalivery 5

Postage

$0.63

fo

Total Postage andgzes :
78
Ll

gk
12

Pastmak
Here

g6/08/2023

$0.63
12l Postage and gies? o
LEA"

——

i3

T8 AL BB DeE Hill £
9589 0710 5270 OuZZ 0733 &2

7] Hotumn Boceint {olectrenic)

[} Aduit Signature Roquired

{J Aduit Signature R
Postage

$

Cortfied Maill Foo.

s
F
$

.'U_ Sent To RICH’A-e,D Mé_

- e [Strest and

3 | Clcontifiod Mall Restrictod Deivery & __ S0 I

I~
u

I (Extra Serices & Fees {ehock box, add
[En]

1 | CIRetun Recelpt hardcopy)

o (G 8te, 2o

u
ru
[
=
™~
o]
1

1184
12

Here

Postmark
04/08/2023

T e e oshm

I
i

i

3

S0, i

$
s
$

oE?N& Dyt ¢
Ox GoY

#1.43
Ef7g
Heesee t

$4.15
Services & Fees (chock box, add fa

[ | [Jretum Receipt thardcepy)
o or PUS

OIS

City; State, 21P:

)

and A

] Adutt Signatura Restricted Delivery §

Pastage

[ Gertifled Mall Restricted bellvary  §
3

[ Retum Rocolpt oioctrenic)
[T Adutt Signature Required

Total Postage and

)

Sent To

|

e [Sireet

LN
iy

$

ru |[Cortied Mai Fes

nis
= [Extra

Th fhel

'~

nu

L

0

06/0
]

fr

A

S0 00
b2 24 i

148

RRARA A OB

s 000
[ Acult Signature Restricted Doltvory $
ox NO.

Pestage

Ois

5.
§
y §

OB
500

{check box, edd fee

[ Return Roceipt hardoopy)
[ fieturn Recsipt (ploctrenic)

3 | [ Gentifiod Mall Restrictad Debve:

3
m
L

s 7g
en 17
Apt. Ne.,

'Q_

o [City; State, Zi

$0.63

|

freet

Corthod Mall Fae §% .15

u s

[ Acult Signaturs Required

Sent To

'm'é'ervices & Feos

rA [Total Postage ang

o0
[ma]
o s
o r
-
i

bh EELO

L Tu

Sent To

Strat and Apt_No., or PUBox No,

......... W& (Gl
4t/ o

Cify,"State, ZiFv4®

Frod

AUAN D Pocewned .
o LANE
— 0605

3

B iy i i L S
Certified Mail Fee $4.15 iig4
Ext Senvi &Fi {check box, add fe b il 7] 12

ra Services & Fees (check box, add fo. 1p, iate)

[ Return Receipt {nardcopy) $ m

[} Return Recoipt {elactronic) s &0.00 Postmark

[ Centified Mall Restricted Defwery  § _ S0, Q1 Here

[ Adult Sigrature Required S0 B0

[l Aduit Sig Restricted Delivery $
Post -

osteee $01.63 AP
Total Postage and;zes - Qe/U8/ 2023

o7

Street and Apl. No., of PO 'Box No.

City, State, ZIP+45

9589 0710 5270 0422 0733 yy

SR orepen) A PoSE RO

27 uu&.@.is.e.x.@.a_e.._1.4.;.1.L.Hé’gq!....__.._____._
6

}5 411,00

Exira Services & Fees (check bo; ddl fe I
R | i

71 Retum Recelpt (hardcopy)
1 Return Recelpt (s ic) $ 51_1 x ﬁ' t

[l certified Masl Restictad Detivery  $ __ S0 LU
[7] Adutt Stgnature Required S o0

[] Adutt Slgnature Restrcted Delivery $

Postage 407,42

Total Postage aﬁdg%es?g
.

0184
12

Pastmark
Here

064/08/2023

3549 0710 5270 Ouce DO7u8 53
o

f?f'.i_:%___ oSE¢ro oM cen,
Streaf and Apt, No., 6r PO BoX No..
95 M




ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
TOLLAND, CONNECTICUT
REGULAR (HYBRID) MEETING MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 23, 2023

MEMBERS PRESENT: Claudette Morehouse, Chair
Ben Chevalier, Vice Chair
Nate Carlson
Bob Burns (remote)
Mike Martel
Jean Fiske, Alternate (remote)

OTHERS PRESENT: Robin Newton, AICP, CZEO — Tyche Planning & Policy Group
Matt Geanancopoulos, CT Department of Transportation
Raymond Zabilansky, 56 Skungamaug Road
Public (remote)

1. CALL TO ORDER
Claudette Morehouse, Chair, called the hybrid meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The Pledge of
Allegiance was recited.

2. SEAT ALTERNATES

None.

3. PUBLIC HEARING
Claudette Morehouse explained the two-part process of the public hearing.

MOTION: Ben Chevalier/Nate Carlson to open the public hearing. All were in favor. Motion
carried.

3.1 ZBA #23-1, 56 Skungamaug Road — Request for a variance to reduce the required lot size from
15,433 s.f. to 15,093 s.f. where 87,120 s.f. is required in conjunction with the CT DOT Project
142-152 per Tolland Zoning Regulations Section 5-3.A.1. Zone: Residential Design District.
Applicant: State of Connecticut Department of Transportation.

Bob Burns read the legal notice.



February 23, 2023 Zoning Board of Appeals

Note: There was some initial confusion over who was the applicant as there was only one
person in the audience, Raymond Zabilansky, who was actually the impacted resident, and so
he was invited to speak first.

Raymond Zabilansky of 56 Skungamaug Road said he bought his small non-conforming in size
lot about two years ago. He said he understands the Department of Transportation would like to
take 350 square feet of his lot for their project. He understands their issue but it would encroach
on the back of his barn and it feels like a lot of land is being taken.

The biggest issue for him is safety. When the work is completed and the bridge reopens,
Raymond Zabilansky said he was concerned that with Route 74 being a very busy road with
many people driving very fast down it, there are bound to be some people who will go right
through the corner and plow into his barn. Right now there are some large trees that protect his
barn and property, but when they come down, that protection to safety will be gone.
Additionally, the barn is heated and there is an oil tank in back of it.

Matt Genancopoulos representing the CT Department of Transportation attended remotely. He
said the project to replace the bridge includes a proposal to realign Skungamaug Road and tee
up the intersection with Route 74. This realignment is designed with enhanced safety in mind.
He said the realignment will not move Route 74 closer to his barn. Skungamaug Road will turn
right and tee with the intersection. This is the reason they need to take the 350 square feet of
Raymond Zabilansky’s property.

Claudette Morehouse asked if the plan is to straighten the curve in the road. Matt
Genancopoulos said, yes, there will be a slight flattening out. Bob Burns asked if the bridge
will end up being a little wider. Matt said it would be. The redesign will bring it up to
standards.

Raymond Zabilansky said if a driver were coming from Route 74 to Skungamaug, the issue is
that if someone doesn’t slow down, they could end up going straight into his property. He
asked what the distance would be from the road to his barn. Matt Genancopoulos said it is
about 35 feet to the barn, and the taking line is at about 17 feet.

Raymond Zabilansky asked if someone from DOT would be reaching out to him, and, if so,
when?

Matt Genancopoulos said the first step is to send out the notices about the project. After they
resolve that, then they would contact him with an offer for the property being taken. If the
variance request is resolved, then it would likely be about one to two weeks. If, however, the
variance request is denied then, they go back to the drawing board.

Matt Genancopoulos said there were three options for them if the variance request is denied.
They could (a) pull off the property all together and not tee up with Skungamaug Road as the
town had requested; (b) try to get an easement across the Zabilansky property, or (c) acquire
the entire property at 56 Skungamaug Road by eminent domain.

Raymond Zabilansky said it would be helpful if he could get an idea how much he would be
offered for the 350 square foot taking. Matt Genancopoulos said he couldn’t say what the value
might be. The question then arose about whether the ZBA could approve the variance request,

2



February 23, 2023 Zoning Board of Appeals

but then deny it later if the DOT and Raymond Zabilansky could not agree on a suitable offer.
They could not do so. Matt Genancopoulos said their first step is always to try to work out a
fair agreement.

Claudette Morehouse asked if the DOT would be willing to increase the safety to Raymond
Zabilansky’s property by adding a barrier of some kind, like a guardrail. Matt Genancopoulos
said it is not in the plan and something the DOT does not ordinarily do. Raymond Zabilansky
said he would entertain an agreement if he could get some ballpark number or if there were
added safety provisions offered. Without that, it’s difficult to make a commitment.

Nate Carlson asked if there were plans they could see. Robin Newton provided Matt
Genancopoulos document sharing capability on Zoom. Matt Genancopoulos noted it is not the
most up-to-date plan but pointed out the property and the realigned Skungamaug Road.

Claudette Morehouse asked if there was any signage in the plan to inform drivers of the turn or
that it is no longer a straight-away. Matt Genancopoulos said there was. He showed the type of
signage that would be added—a sign with an arrow showing the curve coming up.

Raymond Zabilansky said without seeing the most up-to-date plan, it is difficult to agree to
anything. Matt Genancopoulos said he understood his safety concerns, but noted that the plan
was already vetted out with the town. He said the purpose of the variance application is
whether or not the reduces lot size would be in harmony with Tolland’s zoning regulations.

Claudette Morehouse noted it is already a non-conforming lot and the taking would make it
more non-conforming. It would also be making his property more unsafe.

Mike Martel asked how the easement option would work. Matt Genancopoulos said they could
proceed with an easement without the need for a variance, but they prefer not to do them. It
would only be an option they might consider if they were denied the variance. However, they
would also need to take into account the safety considerations. He said they could possibly not
do the tee up or they could consider buying his entire property. If they went the easement route,
it would be a permanent easement across his property. They would pay the full value in a one-
time payment. In this situation, the lot size would not change, so it would not trigger the statute.

Raymond Zabilansky said that without any numbers to consider and with the safety issues, he
saw no value in it. He said right now, it would be pretty much a “no” for him.

Claudette Morehouse asked if a hardship requirement applies in these cases. Robin Newton
said as far as she knew the DOT is not exempt from the hardship claim in Tolland’s zoning
regulations. Matt Genancopoulos said due to the unilateral nature of the DOT, they do have
eminent domain authority. He said without a variance, the hardship might be that they would
have to take the property owner’s entire property.

Robin Newton said if they grant a variance for the 350 square feet, the property owner would
only lose a small portion of his property. She suggested he may want to work with the DOT to
install a barrier. This would be preferable to losing his whole property. She asked Matt
Genancopoulos if added safety features might be worked in with the engineer, such as adding
large boulders. Matt Genancopoulos said he believed it could possibly be a negotiated item if



February 23, 2023 Zoning Board of Appeals

the barrier were installed on the owner’s property, as the DOT would not maintain it. He said
he could not make any promises, though.

Claudette Morehouse asked if Matt could go back to the DOT first before any decision was
made by their Board. Matt Genancopoulos said he would not expect that would happen with the
DOT.

Raymond Zabilansky said this is a route Tolland High School students take to school and he
could easily see a crash happening in the area.

Nate Carlson said no matter what the Board decides, the job will go forward and probably at a
price Raymond Zabilanksy won’t like. Robin Newton said the offer is a small taking, adding
that Matt Genancopoulos handles Right of Way issues and can’t commit the DOT to any
specific requests. She suggested that Raymond Zabilansky, the DOT and the Town could sit
down together and figure out the best way to make his property safer. In discussing the
potential offer, Matt Genancopoulos said the offer for the 350 square feet would be the
difference between the current fair market value now and what it would be with that piece
taken. He said the minimum offer the DOT makes in any taking is $500. They can’t offer less
than that.

Raymond Zabilansky asked if there were any grounds under which the DOT could not touch
his property. Robin Newton said if the DOT wanted to take his land by eminent domain, they
could do it. She suggested the most feasible way to handle it would be to sit down with
representatives from the Town and the DOT to address his safety concerns. She noted the
reconfiguration proposal would naturally slow traffic — it’s a traffic-calming measure. The
current “V” design of the road does not slow traffic. She said adding boulders might add a layer
of safety. If the DOT won’t add them, perhaps the town would be willing to do that with
Raymond Zabilansky’s approval. Matt Genancopoulos said he would share their discussion
with the engineers.

MOTION: Ben Chevalier/Nate Carlson to close the Public Hearing for ZBA #23-1, and open
the Business Meeting. All were in favor. Motion carried.

4. BUSINESS MEETING

Mike Martel said he felt the best option would be to approve the variance as it would provide the
property owner with the best chance of not having his entire property taken by eminent domain.
Claudette Morehouse agreed. The Board discussed the need for the property owner to meet with
the Town and DOT to discuss taking extra safety precautions. Bob Burns suggested berms, a
guardrail or boulders. He said he understood the homeowner’s concerns about someone not
familiar with the road change barreling through onto his property.

MOTION: Ben Chevalier/Nate Carlson to approve ZBA #23-1 for a variance to reduce the
required lot size at 56 Skungamaug Road from 15, 433 s.f. to 15,093 s.f. where 87,120 s.f. is
required in conjunction with CT DOT Project 142-152 per Tolland Zoning Regulations Section 5-
3.A.1, the hardship being the need to avoid losing the property in full to eminent domain. All were
in favor. Motion carried.



February 23, 2023 Zoning Board of Appeals

4.1 Commissioner Training — Robin Newton referred to the UConn CLEAR land use commissioner
training in members’ packets. She noted that pursuant to a Connecticut Statute, ZBA members
are required to obtain four hours of training every two years, including one required hour of
training on affordable housing. She said their four years would be required to be completed by
the end of this year.

Robin Newton said UConn CLEAR has recently put up a training calendar on their website.
They can take classes and then inform Michael D’ Amato when they have completed them.
Claudette Morehouse asked where she could find the information on the website. Robin
messaged Michael D’ Amato asking him to send them all a direct link to them.
5. APPROVE MINUTES - October 27, 2022 Regular Meeting
MOTION: Ben Chevalier/Mike Martel to approve the October 27, 2022 Regular Meeting minutes
as written. All were in favor. Motion carried.

6. OTHER BUSINESS — None.

7. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Claudette Morehouse/Ben Chevalier to adjourn the meeting and pay the clerk at 8:05
p.m. All were in favor. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Annie Gentile
Clerk



	Agenda
	Section 3.1 - Public Hearing 23-2 17 Walbridge Hill Road
	Section 5 - Approval of Meeting Minutes from February 23, 2023



